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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Nerofix Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including 
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accountinl) policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Other Information 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors Report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
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financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended . This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

► Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

► Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

► Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

► Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
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going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

► Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these 
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure 2" to this report; 

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been 
paid/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

per Anil Jobanputra 
Partner 
Membership Number: 110759 

UDIN: 21110759AAAABX5736 

Place of Signature: Mumbai 
Date: 30 April 2021 
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our report of even date on the financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

(b) All the property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the 
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds 
of immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name 
of the Company except for one immovable property consisting of Freehold Land acquired 
pursuant to business acquisition aggregating Rs. 8,62,03, 704 as at March 31, 2021 for 
which the Company is in the process of registering the title deeds in its name. 

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
physical verification. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed 
by us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
loans, investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 
185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products of the 
Company. 

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, 
income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax and other statutory dues have 
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures 
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax and 
other statutory dues were outstanding, at the yearend, for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income 
tax, duty of customs and goods and service tax which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute. 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not have 
any loans or borrowings from financial institutions or government or dues to debenture 
holders during the year. 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit 
procedures performed by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public 
offer I further public offer / debt instruments. Monies raised by way of term loans were 
utilized for the purposes for which they were raised. 

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair 
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the 
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit 
procedures performed by us, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) 
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable 
to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 
the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the period under audit 
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and 
hence not commented upon. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit 
procedures performed by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon. 
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

per Anil Jobanputra 
Partner 
Membership Number: 110759 

UDIN: 21110759AAAABX5736 

Place of Signature: Mumbai 
Date: 30 April 2021 
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Annexure 2 - To the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the financial statements of 
Nerofix Private Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nerofix 
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial 
statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
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principles. A company"s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

per Anil Jobanputra 
Partner 
Membership Number: 110759 

UDIN: 21110759AAAABX5736 

Place of Signature: Mumbai 
Date: 30 April 2021 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

ASSETS 
Non-current Assets 

Property. Plant and Equipment 

Capital Work in Process 

Right of Use Asset (ROU) 

Other Intangible Assets 

Financial Assets : 

Loans 

Non Current Tax Assets ( Net) 

. Other Non-current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 
Financial Assets : 

Trade Receivables 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Other Current Assets 

EQlllTY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity Share Capital 

Other Equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities: 

Borrowings 

. Deferred Ta., Liabilities (net) 

Provisions 

Total Non-current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Total Equity 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities: 

Borrowings 

Trade Payables 

Total Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises 

Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Otl1er Financial Liabilities 

Other Current Liabilities 

Short Term Provisions 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Note 

4 
5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16A 

17 

18 

19 

20 

168 

2.1 

As at 
31 March, 2021 

20,58, I 0.706 

3.88.000 

3,68.78,426 

9,97,63.235 

10,23.040 

21,90,82,212 

54.08Q 

20,00,00,000 

(4,57,79,444) 

17,18,75,000 

7,01,43,040 

2,69,19, I I 7 

2 l, 13,05,589 

34,28,40,367 

I 0,23,040 

5, 16,823 

2,15,861 

34,45,96,091 

13,37.17,438 

21,91 ,36,30 I 
1,80, I 0,529 

37,08,64,268 

71,54,60,359 

15,42,20,556 

17,18,75,000 

11 ,07,655 

17,29,82,655 

30,83,67,746 

7,82,41 ,3 15 

14,30,054 

2, 18,033 

38,82,57, 148 

56, 12,39,803 

71,54,60,359 

The notes referred to above form an inte ,ral art ofthcse Financial Statements 
As per our attached report of even date 

For S R 13 C & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

!CAI Finn Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

per Anil Jobanputra 

Partner 

Membership No. 110759 

Mumbai 

April 30, 2021 

~ i 
Director 

DIN08115481 

)2 

Pa rag Oak 

Chief Financial Officer 

Girish Nachane . iashank Sthalekar 

Director ~:::==;::::::~ Company Secretary 
DIN 08736429 60466 

Mumbai 

April 30, 202 1 

Amount in INR 

As at 
31 March, 2020 

21,49,93,313 

3,73,78,965 

11,88,47,235 

9,48,040 

16,85,06,522 

1.35,68, 168 

20,00.00,000 
(86,33,948) 

23,43,75.000 

7,30,70,527 

10,70,96.243 

37,12,19.513 

9,48,040 

92,329 

37,22,59,882 

7,77,20,690 

18,20,74,690 

33,24,595 

26,31,19,975 

63,53, 79,857 

19, 13,66,052 

23,43,75,000 

I 8,0 I ,66,770 

2,8 I ,09,037 

13,62,998 

20,96,38,805 

44,40, 13,805 

63,53, 79,857 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Income 

Re.venue from Operations 

Other Income 

Expenses 
Cost of Materials Consumed 

Total Income 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in­
progress 

Employee Benefits Expense 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

O ther Expenses 

Profit/(Loss) Defore Tax 
Tax Expense 

Deferred Tax 

Profit/(Loss) for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Expenses 

Total Tax Expense 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Earnings per Equity Share: 

Basic and Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Note 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 
27 

28 

15 

2.1 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these Financial Statements 

Year Ended 
31 March, 2021 

69,97,53, I I 8 

2,89,505 

52,67,82,4 52 
(2,75,07,236) 

5,65,78, 179 

2,55,24,494 

3,36,99,237 

12,21,10,993 

70,00,42,623 

73,71,88,J 19 

(3,71,45,496) 

(3,71,45,496) 

(3,71,45,496) 

( 186) 

Amount in INR 

For the Period 17 July, 2019 to 31 March, 
2020 

22,89,61,798 

1,24,339 

16,94,39,458 

(57,33,286) 

1,90,74,825 

78,76,712 
1,08,95,958 

3,61,66,4 18 

-------

22,90,86, 137 

23,77,20,085 

(86,33,948) 

(86,33,948) 

(86,33,948) 

(126) 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors ofNerofix Private Limi d 

For S R ll C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

per Anil Jobanputra 
Partner 

Membership No. I I 0759 

Mumbai 

April 30, 2021 

~ 
Prashant Pai 
Director 

DIN 08115481 

Girish Nachane 
Director 

DIN 08736429 

Mumbai 

April 30, 2021 

Parag Oak 
Chief Financial Oflicer 

f}j~~(y~--< 
~ nk Sthalckar 

Company 

ACS 60466 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

A - Equity Share Capital 

Number of Shares Amount in INR 

Balance a, at 17 July, 2019 -

Issued during the period 2,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 

Balance a, at 31 March, 2020 2,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 

Issued during the period 

Balance as at 31 Mnrch, 2021 2,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 

B - Other Equity 

Amount in INR 

Particulars Retained Earnings Total 

Balance as at I April, 2020 (86,33,948) (86,33,948) 
Prnfit/(Loss) for the period (3,71,45,496) (3,71,45,496) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (4,57,79,444) (4,57,79,444) 

Balance as at 31 March, 2021 (4,57,79,444) (4,57,79,444) 

Amount in INR 
Particulars Retained Earnine:s Total 

Balance as at 17 July, 2019 -
Profit/(Loss) for the period (86,33,948) (86,33,948) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (86,33;948) (86,33,948) 

Balance as at 31 March, 2020 (86,33,948) (86,33,948) 

The notes refened to above form an integral part of these Financial Statements 

As per our attached repm1 of even date ~ For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Nerofix Priva;Ate L

0 

imite, d 

For S R BC & CO LLP 
Chm1ered Accountants 

IC AI Finn Registration No 314982E/E300003 Prashant Pai Para Oak 

per Anil Jobanputra 
Partner 

Membership No. 110759 

Mumbai 
April 30, 2021 

Director Chief Financial Officer 

Dl~481 

Girish Nachane 

Director 

DIN 08736429 

Mumbai 
April 30, 2021 

~~~~ 
:;.B ashank Sthalekar 

Company Secreta1y 

ACS 60466 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Finance Costs 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 
Working Capital Adjustments 

Adjustment for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets: 

Inventories 

Trade Receivables 
Loans and Other Assets 

Adjustment for increase/ (decrease) in operating liab1hties: 
Trade payables and Other liabilities 

Direct Taxes Paid (net) 

Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset 
and Other Intangible Assets 

Acquisition of business (Refer Note 38) 

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities 
Proceeds/( Repayment) from long tenn borrowings 
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 

Proceeds from Shot1 tenn borrowings 

Interest Paid 

Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as the end of the year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year, the 
components being: 

Cash on Hand 
Banks Balances 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) as disclosed above 

Notes: 
(i) Figures in brackets are outflows/deductions. 

Year Ended 
31 March, 2021 

J,36,99,238 

2,55,24,494 

(5,59,96,748) 

(5,05,75,690) 
( 1,48,84,467) 

6,30,92,290 

(53,20,091) 

( 1,56,25,000) 

7 ,01,43,040 

(2,59,08,826) 

54,089 

(3,71,45,496) 

5,92,23, 732 

2,20, 78,236 

(3,62,86,379) 

5, 16,823 

(3,68,03,202) 

(53,20,091) 

2,86,09,214 

(1,35,14,079) 
1,35,68,168 

54,089 

54,089 

54,089 

(ii) The above Cash Flow Statement is prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flows. 

As per our attached report of even date 

For S R D C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

!CAI Finn Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

per Anil Jobanputra 

Partner 

Membership No. 110759 

Mumbai 
April 30, 202 I 

Director 

DR l548I 

Girish Nachane 

Director 

DIN 08736429 

Mumbai 

April 30, 2021 

Amount in INR 

For the Period 17 July, 2019 to 31 
March, 2020 

1,08,95,958 

78,76,712 

(51,41,596) 

( 4,83,97 ,838) 
(26,58,264) 

6,76,65,902 

(21,15,471) 

( 45,00,00,000) 

25,00,00,000 

20,00,00,000 

(59,23,287) 

41,669 

1,35,26,499 

Parag 
Chief Financial Officer 

~ 
Company Sccretmy 

ACS 60466 

(86,33,948) 

1,87,72,670 

1,01,38,722 

2,16,06,926 

2, 16,06,926 

(45,21,15,471) 

44,40, 76,713 

1,35,68, 168 

1,35,68,168 

1,35,68, 168 

1,35,68,168 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

Note 1: Corporate Information 

Nerofix Private Limited (the 'Company') is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act . The Company's has been incorporated on 1 7 July, 2019. The registered office of the 
Company is located at 111, The Great Eastern Galleria, Plot No.20, Sector - 4, Nerul (West) Navi Mumbai - 400706. The 
Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants. 

Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited is holding company of Nerofix Private Limited and is based and listed in India. Financial 
Statements of Kansai Nerolac Private Limited are available in public domain. 

Note 2: Basis of Preparation 

a Statement of compliance 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 , (the 'Act ') 
and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time. 

Details of the Company's Accounting Policies are included in Note 2.1 . 

b Functional and Presentation currency . 

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. 

c Basis of measurement 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial assets and liabilities 
which are measured at fair value . 

d Use of estimates and judgements 

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and 
expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions and conditions . 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods . 

i) Business combinations and Intangible Assets 

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations . Ind AS 103 requires the 
identifiable intangible assets and contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net fair value of 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree . Significant estimates are required to be made in 
determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These valuations are conducted by 
independent valuation experts. 

ii) Critical Judgments 

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which 
have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements . 

Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defined benefit obligation . 
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates 
of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 



Contingences and Commitments 
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against the 
Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably, 
we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the 
financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the fin'al outcome of the legal proceedings, we do 
not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on our financial position or profitability. 

iii) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the 
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
As described in Note 2.1 (iii)(c), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant 
and equipment at the end of each reportinq period. 

Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables 
The Company makes Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of 
trade and other receivables. The identification of impairment allowance requires use of judgments and estimates. 
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the 
trade and other receivables and impairment allowances in the period in which such estimate has been changed. 

Allowances for Inventories 

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying 
value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value . The purpose is to ascertain whether an 
allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow- moving items. Management is 
satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial 
statements . 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the 
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions . 

Defined Benefit Plans 

The costs and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other long- term employee benefits are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ 
from actual developments in future. These include the determination of appropriate discount rate, salary escalation 
rate, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, defined benefit plans are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

Note2.1: Significant Accounting Policies 

i) Classification of Assets and Liabilities 

Schedule Ill to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non­
cu rrent. 

(a) An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

(i) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's 
normal operating cycle ; 

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

(iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date ; or 

(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

(b All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current. 

(c) A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria : 

(i) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

(iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification. 

(d All liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non- current. 

ii) Operating Cycle 

An operating cycle is the time between the acquIsItIon of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash or cash equivalents . The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as 
twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

iii) Property, Plant and Equipment 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially 
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment, if any. 

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates 
and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The initial estimate of 
the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is 
included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of 
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working 
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and 
restoring the site on which it is located. 

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital /4·=::::::::,..,_ 
progress. Item of Capital Work-in-progress is carried at cost using the principles of val 
item of property, plant and equipment t i ll it is ready for use, the manner in which int0 H.,,.,_~ 

management. 



(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent exp!nditure is capitalised only if it is probab)e that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

(c) Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a 
systematic basis over its useful life. The Company provides depreciation on the straight line 
method. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the 
asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on 
internal technical evaluation, the management believes useful lives of the assets are 
appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if 
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits embodied in the , asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed 
pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance 

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless 
it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

The Company acquired Property, Plant and Equipment from from Polygel Industries Private 
Limited in FY 2019-20 as per the Business Transfer Agreement. The assets were transferred at 
remaining useful life determined by the specilaist at the time of acquistion. 

Remaining Useful life 
Asset Class at the time of 

acquisition 

Residential Flat 8 
Buildinq 49 
Computers 3-5 
Furniture 9-10 
Office Equipment 2 
Plant and Equipments 2-15 

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows: 

Usefu I Lives 
Useful Lives 

(in years) 
(in years) 

Asset Class - as estimated 
- as per Companies 

by the 
Act, 2013 

Company 

Buildinas 30-60 30-60 
Plant and Equipments 10-20 10-20 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10 
Office Equipments 5 5 
Com outers 3-6 3-6 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date 
on which asset is ready for use (disposed off). 

(d) Disposal 

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The ga· 
arising from the derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is in 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

iv) Lease 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration . 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term 
leases and leases of low-value asset. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and 
right-of- use asset representing the right to use ·the underlying asset. 

(a) Right of Use Asset (ROU) 

The Company recognises Right of use asset at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right of use asset are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of Right 
of use asset includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cost s incurred, and lease 
payments mad e at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of use asset are 
denreciated on a straight - line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the 
;issPt. ~, fnllnws · 

I Leasehold land 75 Years 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the 
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The Right 
of use asset are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies on Impairment of non-financial 
i)t;~Pt . 

(b) Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term . Th e lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the 
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company 
exerci sing the option to terminate . Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or 
condition that triggers the payment occurs . In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company 
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the 
lease is not readily determinable . After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to 
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of 
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease 
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine 
such lease payment s) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Lease liability, if any and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments. 
if any have been classified as financing cash flows. 

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset 
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short - term leases of property, 
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of I 2 months or less from the 
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value asset 
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value . Lease payments on 
short - term leases and leases of low-value asset are recognised as expense on a straight - line basis over the 
lease term. 

Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight - line basis 
over the lease terms. Initial direu costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an oper;iting lease are added to 
the carryi ng amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
intome . Contingent rents are recogn ised as revenue in th e period in which they arc earned. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

v) Other Intangible Assets 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. 
Intangible assets are initially measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. 

(b) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

(c) Amortisation 

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight line method. The Company 
believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic 
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The amortisation method is reviewed 
at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the expected 
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is 
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an 
accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors. 

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows: 

Asset Class 
Useful Lives (in years) 

- as estimated by the Company 
Technical Know How 10 

Non Compete Fee 5 
Customer Relationship 5 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

vi) Employee Benefits 

(a) Short-term Employee Benefits: 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the 
;imn1int nf nhlin;itinn r;in hP P<::tim;itprl rPli;ihlv 

(b) Post-Employment Benefits : 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 

(i) Provident and Family Pension Fund 

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in 
respect of provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company 
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees' eligible salary (currently 
12% of employees' eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund 
Commissioner (RPFC) which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making the 
contribution, and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution Plan. 
The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 



Defined Benefit Plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan oth~r than a defined contribution plan. 
The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting 
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, 
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of 
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan ('the asset 
ceiling'). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any 
minimum funding requirements. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, 
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding 
interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company determines the net 
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period 
to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net 
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in 
benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on 
curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses 
on thP spttfement of ;i definPd benefit ol;rn when the settlPmPnt occurs. 

Gratuity 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering 
eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, 
death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to l 5 days 
to one month salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six 
months depending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of 
service. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent 
external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year using the projected unit credit 
mPthnrl Art11:iri;il n:iin, :inrl ln,,P, :irP rPrnnni,Prl ;i, nthpr rnmnrPhPndvP lnrnmp 

(c) Other Long-term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences 

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The 
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future 
encashment/availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on an 
independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses are 
rPrnani<.Pd in thP St;itPmPnt of Profit ;ind Io<;<; _ 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

vii) Inventories 

(a) Measurement of Inventory 

The Company measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

{b) Cost of Inventories 

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition . 

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other 
than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling 
and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade 
discounts. rebates and other similar items are deducted in determinina the costs of ourchase. 

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production and a 
systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting 
materials into finished qoods. 

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition. 

The cost of inventories is assigned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the same cost 
formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the Company. 

(c) Net realisable value 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realisable value is 
ascertained for each item of inventories with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. 

The practice of writing inventories down below cost to net realisable value is consistent with the view 
that assets should not be carried in excess of amounts expected to be realised from their sale or use. 
Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value item by item. Estimates of net realisable 
value of finished goods is based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are 
made, of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration 
fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the 
extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the period. Materials and other 
supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished 
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a 
decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished products exceeds net realisable 
value, the materials are written down to net realisable value. 

Amount of any reversal of write - down of inventories shall be recognised as an expense as when the 
event occurs. 

(d) Valuation of Spare parts , stand-by equipments and servicing equipments 

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as Property, Plant and 
Equipment if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to 
the Company and their cost can be measured r ·ably. Otherwise such items are classified and 
recoanised as lnventorv. ~ l'l-4/'. 

~ 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

viii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for 
investment or other purposes. For an investment to qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to 
a known amount of cash and be subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Therefore, an investment 
normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months or less from the 
date of acquisition. For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement cash and cash equivalent includes bank overdrafts 
whirh ;:irp rpn;:iv;:ihlP nn rfpm;:inrl if ;:inv 

ix) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing 
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre­
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability . 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided 
fnr 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

x) Revenue Recognition 

Sale of Goods 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the 
customer which is usually on dispatch / delivery. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume 
discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified 
in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely 
method) based on underlying schemes and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of 
credit oeriod aiven to customers. there is no financina comoonent in the contract. 

Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS I 09 - Financial 
Instruments : Recognition and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic benefits associated 
with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured 
reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the 
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 

xi) Foreign Currency Transactions 

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates whereas presentation currency is the currency in which the financial statements are 
presented. Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presentation currency for the Company. 

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by 
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and 
the foreian currency at the date of the transaction. 

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing 
rate whereas non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items that are 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 
thP fair v;il1H" w;i,;; mp;i,;;1irPcl . 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in 
previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income . 
Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, 
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

xii) Taxation 

Income tax 

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in Equity or in 
Other Comprehensive Income. 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and 
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax 
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not 
recognised for : 

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 
transaction; 

b taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future 
taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises 
a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is 
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax 
asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related 
t,iv h.Pn.Pfit will h.P r,p,ilic.Prl 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 
date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
I iabi I ities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or 
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 



NEROflX PRIVA If LIMITED 
NOTES TO TH~ FINANCIAL STATtMENTS rDR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

xiii) Financial Instruments 

(a) Recoqnitlon and lr11t1al measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securltte'ii issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial 
assets and financial liabilities are initially recogni\ed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
terms of the instrument . .. 

A financial asset or financial liability is 1n)tially mea"ioured at fair value plus, for an nem not at Fair Value through 
Profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acQu1sition or issue. 

{b) Classification and subsequent measurement 

Flnanci.i1 assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at 

- amortised co~t; 

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCll - debt investment; 

- Fair Value through Other Comprehemive Income - equity investment; or 

- FVTPL 

Financial assets .ire not reclaHified subsequent to their rnicial recognition, except if and in the period the 
Company changes its busin~'os model for managrng financial a~sets . 

A flnancial asset is measured at amortiHd cost if it meets both of the following conditions and j(i not designated 
as at rVTPL· 

- the ,nsel 1s held wilhin a business model whose objectiv~ 1s to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows : and 

- the <:untractual terms of the financial a ss et give rise on specified date'ii to cash ffows thal are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstandiny. 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at 
FVTPL· 

- the asset is held within a business model whose object ive is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets; and 

the contractual terms of the financial ass.et give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on 1he principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment thc1t i'!. not held for trading, !he Company may irrevocably elect to 
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This 
election is made on an investment -by-investment basis. 

All financial a'!.sets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at 
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate 
a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cos-tor at FVOCI a'!. at FVTPL 
if doinq '!.O eliminates or stqnificantly rt:duces an accountinq mismatch that would otherwise arise . 

Financial assets: Subsequent meHurement and gains and losses 

financial asseH J.t FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value . Net gains and 
losses, including any interest, are recognised in Statement of Profit 

l,n,< Im 

Financial asset s at amortised cost Thes.e a~sets are subsequently measured at amornsed cost using the 
t:ffective interest method. The amortised cost ;, reduced by 
impJ.irmenl losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impairment are rec.ognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss . Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised 1n Statemenl 
of Profit and loss. 

Debt mv~slmentc, at FVOCI These assets .,. subsequently mea sured al fJH value. Interest 
inLome under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains 
and losses and impairment are recognised in Sta1ement of Profit and 
Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognl':>ed in OCI. On 
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified 
to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity investments at FVOCI These asse1S are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the 
dividend clearly represents. a recovery of part of the cost of the 
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and 
"rt> ,...,..., rrclassi[ieil 10 S1a1ernect a[ frn{ir ,n,< I 

Financial liabll1lies: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are c las-sified as mPast1red at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at 
FVTPL if It is clas-sified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on in1t1al recoyrnlion. 
findnclal liab1lit1es at FVTPL are measured at fair v.alue and nrt gains and losses, inc luding any interest expense, 
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method . Interest e:itpeme and roreign exchange gains and los.se-s are recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or los~ on derecognitiun is also recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss.. 

(c) Oerecognition 

Financial asset1 

The Company dereLognises a finanri.al asset when the! contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset r)(pirt, ur it transfNs the rights to rcceivr the cont1Jctual cash flow'ii in a transaction in which substantially 
al! at tht· rt\ks and rt'wards. of owner ship of the f111anc1al ass.et are transferred or in which the Company neilhcr 
llansfrr-:i nor re1a1ns subs.t.tnlially all of 1he risk!:. and reward\ of ownersh1p .and does not rct.:1 in control uf tht> 
fin~nri::il ;1<, ,;.-,t 

If the Company enters into transallions whereby it transfers .assets recognised on its balance sheet, but ret.ains 
either all or substJ.nlially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred as.st>ts, the transferred aHets are riot 
de recognised. 

Financ.ial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 
expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms. are modified and the cash flows under the 
modified lerms arc substan11.ally differl:!nt . In this ca-.e , a new financial liability based on the modified terms is 
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amounl of the financial liability extmguis-hed and 
the new financ,al li~bility with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(d) Offsetting 

rinancial assets and financidl liabilities ar~ offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and 
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforct:dble right to set off the amounts and it intends either to 
settle them on a net basi~ or IO r~ali1i,e the ass~t and settle the liability simultaneously. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021 

xiv) Borrowing Cost 

The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquIs1tIon, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Company recognises other borrowing costs as an expense in the period in 
which it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds including exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs. 

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. 

xv) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share 

The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders and, if 
presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity holders. 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders (the numerator) by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominator) during the period. 

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented shall be adjusted 
for events, other than the conversion of potential ordinary shares, that have changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding 
without a corresponding change in resources . 

Diluted earnings per share 

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders and, if 
presented , profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity holders. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity 
holders, and the weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares calculated for 
calculating basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the 
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. Dilutive potential ordinary shares are deemed to have 
been converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of the period or, if later, the date of the issue of the potential ordinary 
shares. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TD THE FINANCIAi STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH. 2021 

xvi) fmoanment Loss 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on . 
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and 
- financial a ssets measured at FVOCI - debt investment!. . 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost a.re 
c.redit · impaired. A financial asset 1s 'credit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company follows 'simplified approach' for 
recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does 
not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, It recognises impairment toss allowance 
ba sed on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

The gross carrying amount of .a financial aHet is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there 
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is genfirally the case when the Company determ ines that the debtor 
does not have assets or source'i of income that could generate suffic ient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that .1re written off could still be subJect to enforcement 
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of .:tmounts due . 

Impairment of Non Financial Assets 

An impairment !oH 1s. the amount by which the carrying amount of an a sset or a cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an as.set or a c'ash-generating unit is the higher 
of its fair value l~ss co sts of disposal and its value in use . Fair va lue is the price that would be received to 'iell 
an asset or p.lid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between m arket participants. at the 
measurement date . Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, dis counted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate. 

The Company as..esses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indicat ion that an asset is 
impaired . In asses sing whether there is any indication that an as.set may be impaired, the Company considers 
External as well as Internal Source of Information . If any such 1ndicat1on exist~. the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount for the individual asser. If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset io; less than its 
carrying amount, the larrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is recognised immediately m profit or loss, unless: the asset 1s carried at revalued amount in accordance with 
::onnth,:, .. (.f::or'l.-l!lr.-1 

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individua l asset. the Company dete rmines the 
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash - generating unit). 
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of as.o;ets. The Company recognises impairment 
loss for a cash-generat ing unit if, and only if, the recoverable amount of the cash -gene rat ing unit i!i less than 
the carrying amount of the ca-;h - generating unit. The Company allocatc5 impairment loss of cash-generating 
unig first to the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash•generating units , 1f any, and then, to the 
other ass.ets of the cash - generating units. pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the 
cash - generating unit. These reductions in carrying amounts shall be treated as impairment losses on 
individual assets and recognised accordingly. 

xvii) Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Companies accounting policies. and disclosures require the measure ment of fair value'i , for 
both financial and non - financial as ...ets and liabilitie s. 

Fair values are catt"gorised rnto d1ffNent levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs u sed m the 
valuation techniques as follows 

Level 1. quoted prices {unadjusted ) in active markets for identical assPts or liabilities 

level 2 : inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observa l,le for the il55et or liab ility, either 
d irectly (1.e. as pr1CeS) or indirectly (i.e. derived fro m price s). 

Level 3· inputs for the aS'iet or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an as.set or a liability fall into different levels. of the 
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair 
value hierarchy J.:r.. th~ lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the re porting 
period during which the ch<1nge has occurred . 

xviii) Business Combina tions 

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Company accounts for these business combinations using the acqui sition 
method when control is: transferred to the Company. The consideration transferred for the business. 
combination is generally mE-asured at fair value as at the date the control is acqu ired {acquisition d~lte). as are 
the net identifiable assets acquired , Any goodwill that ar ises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a 
bargain purchase is recoyn1sed in OCI and accumulated in equ1ry as capital reserve if there exists clear 
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the bu:!iiness combinatio n as resulting in a bargain 
purchase : otherwi se the gain 1s recognised directly 1r1 equuy as capitdl reserve. Transaction tosts are 
expE"nsed as incurred, except to the extent related to the issue of debt or eqUity secur itie s. 

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to tht- settlemE'nt of pre-ex isting 
relationships with the acqu1ree. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss. 

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an oblig.J.tion to pay 
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is claHified as equity, then it is 
not remeasured subsequently and settlement is accounted for within equity. Other c.ontmge nt cons1derat1on is 
remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in the fair value of the contingent lOnsideration 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The valudt1on team regularly reviews signific,3nt 
unobservable inputs. and valuation adjustments. If third party information, su ch as broker quotes or pricing 
service~. is used to measure fair values, then the valuation tedm assesses the evidence obtained from the 
third part ies to support the conclusion that these valuat ions meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the 
leve l in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 



'.'IEROFL\ PRI\.ATE LIMITED 

:\OTES TO THE FINA!\CIAL STATEME'.'iTS AS AT 31ST \URCH, 2021 

l\ote 3: Propertv, Plant and Equipment 

Gross Block 

Description As at Acquisition/ 
Deductions Adjustment 

I April, 2020 Additions 

Freehold Land 8.62.0:UO.j -

(8,62,03,704) . 

Buildings 7,07AO.OOO 1.51,77[, . 26.70,000 

( 7 ,07,40,0001 

Plant and Equipments 6,0.1. 7.1}99 40,05 , 151 (26.70.000) 
. (6,03,73,399) 

Furniture and Fi.x1ures 10.67.167 l ,67.174 . 
(10.67.167) 

Office Eq uipments 5.20,430 . 

(5.20,430) . 

Computers 6.73.771 6,07.990 - -
16.73.771 I . . 

Tot:1I 21,95,78,471 49.32,091 . . 
(21,95,78,471) . 

3 .1 Plant and Equipments at Rudrapur and Dadra loca11on are pledged as secunty agamst Tenn Loan from !lank 

.\ .2 For details penainmg to acquisition Refer Note 38 on Business Combination . 

3 3 Figures in bracket pert am tn pre\ 1ous year. 

As at 
JI \larch, 2021 

8,62,03.704 

(8,62,03.704) 

7J5,6l_776 

(7 ,07.40.000) 

6.1 7 .OX.550 

(6,0J.73,399} 

12 .. ~4_341 

( 10,6 7 .167) 

5.20.430 

(5,20.430) 

12.81)61 

(6.73.771) 

22,45, J0,562 
(21,95,78,471) 

Amount in 11\R 

Accumulated Depredation l\ct Block 

As at 
Additions Deductions Adjustment 

As at As at 
I April, 2020 JI \larch, 2021 JI March, 2021 

. . . 8,62,03,704 

. (8.62,03.704) 

.J,65,447 17.83.301 1.07.602 23,56.350 7,12,05.426 

f 4,65.447) (4,65.447) (7.02,74.553) 

39.16.803 1.17.10,831 t 1.07.60:C I 1,55,20,032 4 .61 ,88.518 
. (39 . 16,803 ) (39, lb.803) (5 ,64,56,596) 

98.529 2.42.203 . 3,40,732 8.93.609 

(98,529) (98,5291 (9,68,638) 

52.455 1.61,314 . 2.13,769 3,06,661 

(52,455) . . (52,455) (4,67,975) 

51,924 ~.17,049 - 2.68,973 10.12,788 

(51.9~4) (51,924) 16.21.847) 

45,85.158 1,41,14,698 . . 1,86,99,856 20,58, I 0, 706 

( 45,85, 158) . (45,85,158) (21,49,93,313) 



NEROFIX PRl\'ATE l.t:\IITED 
NOTES TO THE Fl!\ . .\'.\'CL\L STATE:\fE'.'l'TS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

~·ote -t: Right of l 'se Asset (ROl ") 

Gross Block 

Description As at Acquisition/ 
1 April, 2020 Additions 

Leasehold Land 3,75.37.000 -

-
Total 3,75.37,000 -

- (3,75,37,000) 

.;_ I For details pertaining to acquisi tion Refer Note 38 on Business Combination. 

-l.2 Figures in bracket pertain to prs::\'ious year. 

Deductions 

-

As at 
JI :'\larch, 2021 

3.75.37.000 

(3.75.37.000) 

3,75,37,000 
(3, 75.37.000) 

Amount in I'.'liR 

Accumulated Depreciation Net Block 

As at 
Additions Deductions 

As at As at 
I April, 2020 31 ,1arch, 2021 31 :'\larch, 2021 

1.58.035 5.00.539 6.58.574 3.68,78,426 

- ( 1.58.035) ( 1.58.035) (3 .73 ,78.965) 

1,58,035 5,00,539 - 6,58,574 3,68,78,-t26 

- (l.58,035) ( 1,58,035) (3, 7 3,78,965) 



1'EROHX PRlVATE u,nTED 
1'OTES TO THE FI'.\ANCIAL STATEI\IE:'\TS AS AT 31ST MARCIi, 202l 

1'"ote 5: Other Intangible Assets 

Gross Block 

Description As at Acquisition/ 
Deductions 

1 April, 2020 Additions 

Technical Know How 5.91.60.000 -
- (5.91.60.000) 

Non Compete Fee 2.82.40.000 -
- (2.82,40,000) 

Customer Relationship 3. 76.00.000 -
- (3. 76.00.000) 

Total 12,50,00,000 -
- ( 12,50,00,000) 

5.1 For details pertaining to acquisition Refer Note 38 on Business Combination. 
5.2 figures in bracket pertain to previous year. 

-

-

-

-

As at 
JI ,tarch, 2021 

5, 91.60.000 

(5.9L60.000) 

2.82.40.000 

(2.82.40.000) 

3. 76.00.000 

(3. 76.00.000) 

12,50,00,000 
(12,50,00,000) 

Amount in INR 

Accumulated Amortisation '.'let Block 

As at 
Additions Deductions 

As at As at 
I April, 2020 31 ,1arch, 2021 31 March, 2021 

19.07.344 59. 16.000 - 78.23.344 5. 13.36.656 

- ( I 9.07.344) ( I 9.07.344) (5. 72.52,656) 

l 8.20.940 75.20.000 - 93.40.940 1.88,99,060 

- ( 18.20.940) ( 18.20. 940) (2.64.19,060) 

24.24.481 56.48.000 - 80. 72.48 l 2.95,27,519 

- (24.24.481) (24.24.481) (3.5 l,75,519) 

61,52,765 l ,90,8--1,000 - 2.52,36, 765 9,97,63,235 

- (61,52,765) (61,52,765) (11,88,47,235) 



NEROFIX PRIVATE I.ll\1ITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Noh' 6: Loans 

Unsecured and ConsiJaed Good 
Security Deposits 

Note 7: Othrr non-current assets 

Unsecured and Considered Good 
Prepaid E,penscs 

Note 8: Im·cntorics 

Rilw Materials 
Packing Materi:11s 
Work-in-progress 
Finished Goods (Including goods - 111 tr.111s1t of Rs 12,68, 159 (PY: 
Rs. 14,59,034)) 

Stores anJ Spares 

As at 
31 March,2021 

10.23,040 

10.23,040 

2,15.86 1 

2,15,861 

Ii.I I , 18.005 

2, 12,76,535 

53,32,789 

4 ,51 .87.(,63 

8,02.-l-16 

13,37,17.438 

Amount in INR 

As at 
31 !\larch, 2020 

9,48,040 

9,48,0.!0 

92,329 

92,329 

3,60,46,746 

I , 76.34,880 

41,67.253 

1,88.45 .%3 

I 0,25.848 

7. 77 ,20,690 

Trade Receivahle and Inventories are pledged as rrimary security for cash credit obtained during the current year. (Refer Note 17) 

Rs . 25 ,921 (Previous Year: Nil) amount of inventories were \\'ritten off during the current year Nil amount of reversal or \\'rite down was accounted 
during the current year. 

Cost of inventory recognised as an exr~nse durmg the year is included in Note 23 and 24. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO TIIE FINANCL\L STAT1<:,1ENTS ,\SAT 31ST MARCIi, 2021 

Not~ 9: Trade Hcceivablrs 

Secured. Considered Good 

Unsecured. Considered Good • 

Rccc1vablcs - credit impaired 

Less: Allowance for doubtrul trade receivables 

As at 
31 March, 2021 

21.90.82.212 

6,00.000 

(6.00.()00) 

21.90.82,212 

• Includes INR 1.6 7.58.684/- rccc1vable fro m Parent Company - Kansai Nero lac Paints Limited . 

Amount in INR 

As at 
31 '.\larch, 2020 

16.85.06,522 

16.85 ,06,522 

Trade Receivable and Inventories arc pledged as primary security for cash credit obtained <lunng the current year (Reier Note 17) 

For terms and conditions relating lo rdated party. Refer Note 31 . 
Trade Receivable arc non-interest bearing and cred it terms arc generally from 30 to 120 days. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
I\OTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCIi, 2021 

Amount in 1:'IIR 

As at 
31 March, 2021 

l\otc I 0: Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 

13anks Balances 

Note 11: Other Current Assets 

Unsecured and Consickrcd Good 

Balances with Indirect Tax Authorities 

Trade Advances 

Pn::paid Expenses 

Other Rcceivahk 

54.089 

54.089 

48,12,728 

1.10,75.8:16 

13, 15,564 

8,06,401 

1,80, I 0.529 

As at 
3 I I\ 1 arch, 2020 

41.669 

1.35,26,499 

1.35.6!U68 

2.68, 146 

11,16,761 

15,45,754 

3,93,934 

:n.24.595 



NEROFIX PRIVATE Lll\llTED 
.-.:OTES TO THE FINA!\CIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Nore 12: Share Capital 

I. Authorised Share Capital 
Par Value per Share {in INR) 
Numhcr of 1-:quity Shares 

2. Issued. Subscribed and Fully Paid up 

Par Value per Share (in INR) 

Number or Fquity Shares 

3. Tr.-ms/ rights attached to equit)' shares 

As at 
JI l\larch,2021 

20,00.00,000 
10 

2,00.011.000 

20,00,00,000 

10 

2,00 00.000 

Amount in INR 

As at 
JI March, 2020 

20,00.00,000 
10 

2 00,00.000 

20,00,00.000 

10 

2.00,00,000 

The Company lrns issued one class of shares, i.e. equity shares, which enjoys similar rights in respect of voting, 
payment of dividend and repayment of capital. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitkd 
to receive the residual assets of the Company. remaining after uistribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held . 

4. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% or shares: 

Jliame of the shareholder 

Kansai Ncrolac Paints Limited - Holdmg Company 
Polygcl Industries Private Limited 

Total 

5. Reconciliatiun of the number of shares outstanding: 

Number of shares at beginning of the year 
Issued during the year 
Number of shares at the end of the year 

6. Refer Note 37 on Capital Management. 

% holding 

60% 
40% 

Number of 
Shares 

1,20,00,000 

80.00,000 

2,00,00,000 

2,00,00.000 

2,00,00,000 

% holdin~ 

60% 
40¾ 

Number of 
Shares 

I ,20,00,000 
80,00,000 

2,00,00,000 

2,00,00,000 
2,00,00,000 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO TIIE FINAl\CIAL STATE.\1ENTS AS AT 31ST l\1ARCII, 2021 

Note IJ : Other Equity 
Amount in I'.'IR 

Particulars nctaincd Earni1111.s Total 

IJalancc as at I April. 2020 (86,33,9~8) (86,33,948) 

Profit/(Loss) for the period (3.71.45.496) (3,71,45,496) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (4.57,79,4-U) (4,57,79,444) 

Balance as al 31 March, 2021 (4,57,79,444) (4,57,79,444) 

Particulars Retained Earnin!!s Total 

Balance as at 17 July. 2019 - -
l'rofit/(Loss) for the perind (86.33.948) (86,JJ,948) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (86,33,948) (86,33,948) 

llalance as at JI Mardi, 2020 (86,33,948) (86.JJ,948) 



:\EROFIX PRIVATE Ll:\11TF:D 
NOTES TO THF; FINANCIAL STATEI\IENTS AS AT JIST I\IARCII, 2021 

Amount in INR 

Note 14: Borrowings As al As at 
31 March, 2021 3 I March, 2020 

Seen red loan 
T crm loan from Bank 17, 18.75,000 

17,18.75.000 

For the current maturities of long tcnn borrowings Refer Note 19 "Other Financial Liabilities (Current)". 

23,43,75,000 

23,43, 75,000 

Term loan was taken lrom HDFC Bank in tile previous yt:ar which carries averngt: interest ({_I) 8.60 % per annum. Loan is 
n:payablc a lier I year moratorium mid in 48 months, in 16 quancrly instalments along with intt:rt:st. from th..: date of loan. 
Loan is secured by following - Primary security is Plant & Equipments at Rudrapur & Dadra location and Secondary st:curity 
is Corporate Guarantee of Polygel Industries Private Limited to the c.xtcnt of 40% of Ioli.II facilities sanctioned and Lcltcr of 
Comfon from Kansai Ncrolac Paints Limited for !00% of the total focilities sanctioned. The purpose ufloan was for purchase 
of assets from Pulygel Industries Private Limited. 



NEROl'IX Plll\'ATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO Tllli FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Amount in INH. 

Note 15: Ot"rer"'d Tin LiMbili1irJ (11et) 

A. The m11jor componrnB, of de-ferred tin. {liabililil"s) / 11~1;ct!l ari,ing on accuunl of timing Jifferf'ntt's nre a"' follo"·s : 

(Chnrge) / C'r<dit 

Pnrlirulnn 
A!i)l1 r('cngnisf'd in As Ht 

l April, 2020 profit orluss for 31 ~larch, 2021 
the pr,riod 

Oeforred lit1 li:1biliti ('s in relation to: 

Difference ~hvcen written down \al11e1cap1tal work m progres::;. uf ft:-;cJ asscls as tJ6.<>6At>l i {:!9.18.5:!5 ) (05,84,98(>1 

per the books ~1f accounts and the Income Tax Acl . l9td 

l)eferrrd tu Hsse-ts in n-lntion to: 

01=-allowan~cs unde1 Scclion 401a)(,1>uf 1he lncrnncT.\x A~t. !lltil 5,57.)55 (45.78 2) 5.11.57.1 

t Jnused tax losses. rcstriclcd 1c, extenl of J,.:fcrrcJ ta:-.: I 1ab1 l1t1cs J 1.0Q.1 0(1 2').64.J07 00.11.-111 

Dt'-rr-rrt-d tiu H5!tel!I / (lhtbilitiC':,;) {11t•I) 

(Charg<} / Crtdit 

Pnrticulun 
As at rf'cogni.\ed in ,\5 Ht 

17 July, 2019 pro fit or loss for JI M:orch, 2020 
thC' pC'riud 

Ddc-rred tax li.abilitirs in rf'lation tu: 

Difference betv1.l!en \Vrit1cn Jo,...n \.tl uc-,'("np11 a\ work in pwgrcss of fixed assets ns (]6_6., ,-161) (Jt>.66..f (il) 

per the book 'i of <.1l'.L'1.)unts and the lru:ume Ta-.; A..:t. I 9<:, I 

Odrrrt-d tax ll:'ISl•ls in rl'l.ttion 1o: 

D1s.1llowam·es under Secl1011 40'3)(1) of the lnt::ornc Tax Act. 1<>61 5.57)55 5,57.Jo5 

Unused 1.1.'I( losses, restm.:leJ to ex.tenl of lh:forreJ tax IJ.1bd1t1cs .1 1,0'1 . I OD .ll.09.106 

Ot>rerrf'd ta, asseh / (liabilitit!!I) (net) 

B. Sin.::e the Comp;m)· has mcurred il,sS Junng the y..: ar t'nJed 11 f\lJ.rch, ~O:! I antl no tax 1s payable for 1h1s year as per pro\is1ons of lncutn~ Tax, 

1961. the c:1kula11on of cfTcctl\C tax rntt: 1s 1101 rclc\'ant ;.ind hence, nut g1\en 

As ac 
A~ Rt 31 ~lurch, 2020 

l1 :\tun·li.2021 

11 .07.655 
11.07.(,55 

Note 168: Short ·rt-rm Pro\·i!>ion, 

Prrl\ 1sion for Leave Absences ( Refer Note .l~) 2,18.0JJ 

2.18.0J .l 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Notes 17 Borrowings 

Cash Credit 

As at 
31 March, 2021 

7.01.43.040 
7.01.43.040 

Amount in INR 

As at 
31 March, 2020 

Cash Credit was taken from HDFC Bank which carrit:s interest® 9.00 % per annum. Cash credit is secured by following -
Primary security is Inventory and Receivable of the Company and Secondary security is Corporate Guarantee of Polygel 
Industries Private Limited to the extent of40% of total facilities sanctioned and Letter of Comfort from Kansai Ncrolac 
Paints Limited for I 00% of the total facilities sanctioned. The purpose of loan is for working capital requin::mcnts of the 
Company. 

Note 18: Trade Payables 

Trade Payables 

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises 
and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 36) 

Total Outstanding dues or creditors other than 
Micro Ent.:rprises and Small Enterprises 

For tmns and conditions relating to related party. Refer Note 31. 

Note 19: Other Financial Liabilities 

Current maturities 01 long term horrowings (Reier Note 14) 

Trade Deposits 

Creditors fi.ir Capital Goods 

Interest accrued hut not due on borrowings 

Payable to Staff 

Note 20: Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory Obligations 
Trade Receivables with Credit 13alance 

2.69.19.117 

21.13.05.589 

23 .82.24. 706 

6,25.00,000 

1.32.73.529 

2.79,423 

15.69.092 

6.19.271 

7.82.41.315 

6.25.167 
8,04.887 

14.30.054 

7.30.70,527 

I 0. 70. 96.243 

18,01.66.770 

1,56,25.000 
1,05,30.612 

19.53,425 

2,81,09,03 7 

11,10.948 
2.52.050 

13.62.998 



NEIWFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
:-iOTES TO THE FINAi\CIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 

Note 21: Revenue from Operations 

Sale of l'roduc1s 

Sales 
Less: Discounls & Reba1cs 

Total Sale of Produds 

Other Operating Revenues 

Scrap Sales 
Others 

Rennue from Operations 

:\ote 21.1 Disaggre-gation of revenue from contracts with custome1·s 
The Company tlcril'cs rc\'enue from sale of products from following: 

1':1rticulars 
I. Rcvcm11: from contract with Customers 
Sale of products (Transferred at point in time) 

Manufacturing 
India 

2. Other Operating Revenue 
Scrap Sales 
Others 

Total Rennuc 

Major Product Lines 
Adhesives, Construction Chcmic.ils and Sealants 

Major Product Lines 
ll pon Deli very 

(A) 

( ll) 

(A)+ (B) 

Reconciliation of rc\"Cnue from contract with customer as per Ind AS 115: 
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the contract price 
Adjustments made to contrnct price on al'C0unt of: 

Discounts and Rcba1es 
Other operating revenue 

l{evenuc from contracts with customer as per the Statement of Profit & Loss 

21.2 Contract Balances 

Contract Assets 
Trade Receivables 

Contract Liahilitie-s 
Trade Receivable with Credi! halancc;; 

Note 22: Other Income 

Other Non operating Income 

Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 

Miscellaneous lncom..: 

Income from Export lncenliws 

Year Ended 
31 March, 2021 

70,85,81,994 

1,08, 11 ,724 

69, 77, 70,270 

13,00,786 

6,82,062 

19,82,848 

69,97,53, 118 

70,85,81, 994 

70,85,81,994 

13,00,786 

6,82 ,062 

19,82,848 

7 I ,05,6.1,842 

70,85,81 , 994 

70,85,81 ,99.t 

70,85,81, 994 

70,85,81, '.l'.14 

70,85,81,994 

( 1,08, 11,724) 

19,82,848 
69,97,53, I 18 

21,90,82,212 

8,04,887 

2, 74,803 

14,702 

2,89,505 

Amount in INR 

For the Period 17 
July, 2019 to 31 

March 2020 

23,07,53,087 

21,44,619 

22,86,08,468 

3,53,330 

3,53 ,330 

22,89,61,798 

23,07,53,087 

23,07.53,087 

3,53,330 

3,53,330 

23, II ,06,417 

23,07,53,087 

23,Q7,53,087 

23,07,53,087 

23,07,53,087 

23 ,07,53,087 

(21,44,619) 

3,53,330 
22,89,61,798 

16,85,06,522 

2,52,050 

1,24,339 

1,24,339 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 

Note 23: Cost of Materials Consumed 

Raw Material Consumed 

Opening Stock (PY: Acquisition of Inventory (Refer 
Note 38)) 
Add: Purchase 

Less: Closing StnL:k 

Packing Matt:rial Consumed 

Opening Stoel,. (PY: Acquisition or Inventory ( Refi:r 
Note 38)) 

Add: Purchase 

Less: Sales 

Less: Closing Stuck 

Year Ended 
31 March, 2021 

3,60.46,746 

46,89.80,230 

6.11.18,005 

I. 76.34.880 

8, 79.35.857 

14.20.721 

2.12,76.535 

44.39.08. 971 

8.28. 73.481 

52,67.82.452 

Note 24: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progress 

Opening Stuck (l'Y: Acquisition of Inventory (Reier 
Finished Goods 

Work-in-progress 

Less: Closing Stock 

Finishd (ioods 

Work-in-progress 

1,88.45, 963 

41,67.253 

4,51.87.663 

53.32,789 

2.30.13,216 

5,05.20,452 

(2, 75.07.236) 

Amount in INR 

For the Period 17 July, 2019 
to 31 March, 2020 

3,76,23,994 

13.94.52.444 

3.60.46, 746 

1.69. 18. 707 

2, 92.81. 704 

1.55. 765 

I. 76,34.880 

1,44.46,228 

28.33.702 

1,88,45,963 

41.67,253 

14.10.29.692 

2.84 ,09. 766 

16,94.39.458 

1.72.79.930 

2.30.13.216 

(57.33,286) 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
Non:s TO nm FINA'.'ICIAL STATE,tEl'iTS FORTIIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 

l'iote 25: F.mplovee Benefits Expense 

Salaries and Wages 

t ·unlribution to Provident and Other Funds 

Staff\Vdfarc Expense 

Gratuity Expenses 

Leave Absences Expenses 

Note 26: Finance Cost 

Interest on Term I.nan 

Interest on Cash Credit 

Note 27: Depreciation and Amortisation 

Depn:ciation on Property. Plant and Equipment 
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset 
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets 

Note 28: Other Expense.~ 

Freight and hirwarding Charge, 

Advertisement and S:1ks Promotion 

Labour Charges 

Rates and Taxes 

Travelling & Convey;mce Expenses 

Royalty Charges 

M isce II ancous Expenses 

Note 28.1: Pa}'ments to Statutory Auditors' 

Auditors remuneration e.xcluding taxes <l•1cluded in 
Miscellaneous Expenses in Note no 28) 

As Auditor 

Statutory Audit 
Report under Section 4-1 Al3 or the I ncomc-ta.x Act. 1961 

L11111tcd Revie\\· uf()uartcrly Results 

Rcimbursemellls of Expenses 

\'ear Ended 
31 March,2021 

5,26,05,045 

22.20,534 

4,26,912 

11 ,07,655 

2, 18.033 
5.(,5,78.179 

2,12,82.021 

42,42.473 
2,55.24.494 

1.41.14,698 
5,00,539 

1,90,84.000 

3.36,99.237 

3.49,70,63.J 

2,90.47.303 

1.39.97,686 

11,80,773 

59.47.466 

56,37,580 

3, 13,29,551 

12.21,10,993 

6,00.000 

1,00,000 

2,25,000 

29,350 

9,54,350 

Amount in INR 

For the Period 17 July, 2019 
to 31 March, 2020 

1,78,75,093 

8,55,230 

3.44,502 

1,90. 74,825 

78,76,712 

7R,76,712 

45,85, 158 
1,58,035 

61,52,765 

1,08,95.958 

81,80,702 

60.33,466 

46,64,463 

38.45,844 

24,45,521 

20,03.431 

89,92,991 

3,61 ,66.418 

6,00,000 

1,00,000 

75 ,000 

5,665 

7,80,665 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMrnm 

NOTES TO Hit FINANCIAL S'l'ATEMENTS AS AT JIST MARCIi, 2021 

Note 29: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

Issue or Bank Guarn111ee 

Note 30: [arnings Per t:quit,· Share 

Numerator: 

Profit/(l.oss ) attributable to Equit~· Shareholders 

Denominator: 

W~ighted Average Number of ordinary shares 

llasic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in INR) 

Amount in 11\'R 

Asal 
31 ;\•larch, 2021 

7 ,)0.()()() 

Year Ended 
JI March, 2021 

(3.71 ,45 ,496) 

2,00,00,000 

( 1.86) 

As at 
31 March, 2020 

For the Period 17 July, 
2019 to JI March, 2020 

(86,33,94 8) 

68 ,28,295 

( I 26) 



NEROFIX l'Rl\'AH: LII\IITED 
NOTES TO Tttt: FINANCIAL STATE!\1ENTS AS AT 31ST MARCIi, 2021 

Note 31: Related Party Disclosures 

A related party is a person or entity that 1s related to the entity that 1s preparmg its Financial Statements 

(a) A person or a close memher of that person's family 1s related to a reporting entity if that person· 
( 1) has control or ,101111 control of the reporting entity; 

(ii) has s1gmficant m1luence over the reporting entity; or 

(ii1) is a member nfthe key management pcrsonnd of the reportmg entity or ofa parent of'the rcportmg entity 

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity ifony of the following conditions applies· 
( i) The entity and the reporting entity arc members of the same group (which means tlwt each parent, subs1dial)' and fellow subsidiary is related to the 

others). 

(ii) One entity is an associate or _joint venture of the other entity ( or an associate or jomt venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a 

member) 

(111) Both ent1t1es are jomt ventures of the same third party. 

(iv) One entity is a Joint venture ofa third entitv and the other entity is an associate of the third entity 

(v) The entity 1s a post-emplovmcnt benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity If 

the report mg entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity 

(v1) The entity is controlled or Jointly controlled by a person ident,tiecl 111 (a) 
(v11) A person idenl1tied 1n (,1)(1) has s,grnficant intluence o\"er the entity or 1s a member of the key management personnel of the cnl1ly (or ofa parent of 

the entity) 

(v111) The entity, or any member ofa group ofwhid1 it 1s a part, provides key management personnel services lo the reporting entity or to the parent of 

the reporting entity 

A related party transaction is a transfer nfrcsnurces, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price 

is charged, 

Parties where control exist , 

Ultimate Holdmg Company 

- Kansai l'amts Co,, Ltd (Japan) 

Parent Company 

- Kansai Nerolac Pamts L1m1ted 

Other related parties with whom transactions ha'"e taken place during the period 

Entities with Sigmticant Influence 

- Polygd Industries Private Limited 

- Western India Packaging 

Key Management Personnel 

- Mr AnuJ Jam, Non l'xernl1vc Director we f. 17 July, 2019 

- Mr l'rashant Pai, Non Fxccutive Director" e.f 17 July, 2019 

- Mr Jason Gonsalves, Non Executive Director w.cJ, 17 July, 2019 
- Mr Ginsh Nachane, Non EXL'Cutivc Director w.c.f 25 Apnl, 2020 

- Mr. Ran_jccv 131Mia, Non faccutivc Director up to 25 January, 2021 

- Mr. Luv shah, Non Exec:ut1ve Director w.e.f 25 Junuary, 2021 

- Mr Kuldccp Raina, Chief Executive Ofliccr w.c.f 25 January, 2021 

- Mr. Anil Phatangare, ChicfOpcruting Ofticcr w.c.f 3 January, 2020 

- Mr. Parag Oak, Chief Financial Otlieer w.e f 3 Janual)'. 2020 

- Mr Shashank Sth3lekar, Company Secretary we f 3 Jw1uary, 2020 



NEROFIX PRIVATE Lll\llTF:D 
NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAi . STATE\IENTS AS AT JIST MARCIi, 2021 

Note 31: Rdafl'd Part\' DisrloSUl'CS 

llisclosure of transactions with related parties 

Amount in INR 

Sr. No. Transactions \'ear Ended For the Period 17 July, 

31 March, 2021 2019 to JI March, 2020 

I Purchase of Raw Materials 

- Polygel Industries Private Limited 36,450 75,92,976 

2 Purchase of Business 

- Polygcl Industries l'ril'atc Limited 45,00,00,000 

3 Sale of finished goods 

- Kansai Ncrolac Paints Limited 7.77,22.846 4.39,30.600 

- Polygcl Industries Private Limited 3,65,400 

4 Royalty Cha ri;:es 

- Kansai Nerola<: l'a111ts Limited 56,37,58(1 20,03.431 

5 .Job Work Chari,:es 

- Western India Paekaging 14 . I 0.955 9,79.515 

6 Reimhurscmenl of Expenses Receivable 

- Polygcl Industries Private Limited 37,63,984 

7 Rfimbursement of Expenses 

- Kansai Ncmlac Paints I.un ited 12,00,000 

- Polygel Industries Private I .united 2.02,5 87 32,67,595 

- Parag Oak 3, 12,527 3,65,885 

- Anil Phatangare 4,'J-1.442 

- Shashank Sthalekar 9.652 -

8 Remuneration 

- Parag Oak (Remuneration is paid by Kansai Neroku:'Paints Limi1~d and the same is 19, 10,026 6,36,676 

reimbursed by Company as Deputation Charges) 

- Shashank Sthalckar 3.46.445 2,21,117 

- Anil Phatangarc 34 ,99.630 11 ,2 1. 160 

- Kukkcr Rama -

Disclosure of Balances with .-clatell parties 

Amount in INR 

Sr. No. Balances As at As at 
JI l\.larch, 2021 3 I !\larch, 2020 

9 Receivable 

- Kansa i Nerolae Pamts Limited 1.67,58,684 1,91,79,463 

10 Adrnncrs rcceiYable 

- Polygcl Industries Private Limi1cd 48.12.145 41 , 13,339 

II Pa)'ablcs 

- Polygcl Industries Pril'atc Limited 42,33,337 37,61.667 
- Western India Packaging - 732 

- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 12,31.16') -
The transactions with relakd par1ics arc made on terms equivalent to those that prcl'ail in arm·s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken in 
each financial period through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party upcratcs. Outstanding 
balances as at 31 Mardi, 2021 me unsecured and sctllcment occurs in cash 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOn:s TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCIi. 2021 

Note 32: Emplonc Dendits 

A Defined Contribu1ion Plans 

Contribution to defined contribution plan. recognis-cd in the Slatemcnt of Profit and Loss under Company's 

Contribution 10 Provident Fund in Employee Bendit::. E'<.penses for lht! pe110J ;.,_ as unc.Jer 

Em lover's contnbution to Regional Prov1c.Jen1 Fund Comnms1oner 

D Dt.:'tincd Benefit Plans 

YurEndl"d 

31 March. 2021 

Amount in INR 

For· th 1-'c-riod 17 Jul)·. 

2019 to 3 I March. 2020 

8,55,230 

The l'olluv,ing table,- .,rt out the fonded of the gratuity plan~ anc.J the .amounl recugni'.Sctl 111 the (\impany financial St;i(emcnl"> 

as at 31st March, 2021 and J 1st ~.ldn:h. ::'O:!O 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning 
Current s.ervict! cost 
Interest Expense 

Benefit payments from plan assets 
Rcmeasurcmcnts- actuarial gains/(los!-es) 
Defined henctit obligalion at vcar end 

('hangt> in rair \'alue or 11lan :11ss.e1s 

P111rticulars 

Fair value of plan assc-ts at the heginning 
lntt!re!.t income 

Employer contribul ions 

Dendit payments from plan assets. 
Kemeas.urcmenh- return c,n plan a~scts cxc1u<1111g amounts 111c1u<1e<1 1n m1eres1 

rncorne-

Fair \.alue of plan assets at the year end 
Net liahi!itv 

Yur Endl"d 

31 ~larch, 2021 

11,07,M, 

11,07,651 

Year Endrd 
JI March,2021 

f'or tht Pe-riod 17 July. 

2019 Io3I March, 2020 

For thc- Prriod 17 July. 
2019 to 31 Man:h. 2020 

C'o111110ne,11ts of l>rlin,t.'d Bwrfit Cost rC'C'ogni.ccd in thr- S1atrmC"11t or Prolit and Loss undrr F:mplo~·rr- Brnrfit E:\.pemr~: 

Particulars 

Current Scrvit:e (\)st 

!\et lnlerest C' osl 

Defined Benefit C'o!.t te..:ognist.~ 111 the Stalement of Profit and Loss 

Ytar [nded 

JI March, 2021 

11,07,65, 

Com1-.ontnts of Drlined Bf'nefit Cost rrrogniud in the- Slalt>ment ofOthtr Co11111rrhe-nsivr- Income: 

Particulars. 

Actuarial {_gain:.)/ los-.;cs on Dd1ned B~nt'lit Ohligation 

(Return):/lo:-~ rn1 plan assets excluding amounts mdudcd in 1he net inlcrcst on the nc-1 
defined benefit hability/( as.sel) 

Dt'llncd Benefit Cmt recogniseJ in the Statemt'nt ofOtlwr Crn11p1d1ensl\·e Income 

Thr assumptions us.td to dr1tnnine net jl('r·indiC" bf1u-fil CO'-l 1u·e srt out btlow: 

Pariiculan; 

Discount Rate 

Salary Es.calat1on 
\VClghlcd a..-crngi: dmatilin ( . .lfthe ddi11ed benefit obligallun (years) 

As.at 

31 March, 2021 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

As at 

31 March,2021 

076°0 

6.(KJ~<I 

\j 1)8 

t•or 1hr PcriotJ I 7 July. 

20 I 9 to 31 March, 2020 

!\ii 
1':il 
Nil 

Asat 
3J .Marrh, 2020 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

As at 
31 March, 2020 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 



D1scounl Rate, Salary bcalalmn Rate and Withdrawal Rate are signilic.ant actuarial assumptions The change 111 the Prcscnl Value of 
Defined llenefit Obligation for a change of I 00 Uasis Pomts from the assumed assumptmn 1s given below 

Scenario 

Under Base Scenario 
Salary Escalation - t Jp by l % 
Sali\ry Escalation - Dov.n by J0 o 
W1thd1awal Rates - Up by l~-0 

Withdrawal Rale~ - Down bv 1°·0 
Discount Rates - Up by 111-D 

Oisc-ounl Rates - DmH by I 010 

Expected Rate of Return on Plannc-d As~cl 

Maturity Profilt of DC"fint-d Btnl'fil Obligations 

c. C"omprm:a1C'd Absenres 

.l\1ortali1J,' Tahle 

Altainl"d A2.e 

20 

JO 

)5 

40 

45 
so 

" 60 

Asat As at 

31 M•rrh,2021 31 March, 2020 

I J,07,M5 
12,30,2~2 
9,95,978 

10,7H,264 
11)7,296 

10,01,875 
12,31,261 

6 76°·0 

r'\lalr 

Asat 

31-03-2021 

u 09°0 

U Q()Uo 

U 10°-'o 

Q J:°! 0 •o 

0 J 7do 

0 26~0 

() 44°0 

0 7S0 0 

I 12°0 

N,I 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
:--.Iii 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Female-
0 O9°,o 

009°0 

0 10°-·o 

0 12% 

u 1700 

0 26~·0 

0 4-1°-o 

o 75°.o 

I 12°.0 

Amount of Rs 1, 18.0JJ ( 201 Y-20 Rs Nil ) has heen recognised in the statement of pwtit and loss as an cxrense for compcnsi\tcd abscnn"s. 

Male 

As at 
31-03-2020 

0 09°·0 

0 09°0 

0 10~,I) 

0.12°0 

0.17°0 

o.i.f:i·O 

0 7,;;~.'0 

I 12°'o 

o O9°,o 

0 09°'0 

0 1(_>0/,:, 

0 12°.10 

0 l 7°,0 

0 26°.0 

0 44":··o 

0 7S°.,'o 

112% 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCU, 2021 

Note 33: Segment Reporting 

The Management Committee of the Comrany. approved by the Board or Directors performs the function of 
allotment of resources and assessment of performance of the Company. Considering the level of activities 

performed, frequency of their meetings and level of finality or their decisions. the Company has identified 

that Chief Operating Decision Maker function is being performcd by the Management Committee. The 

financial information prcscntcd tu the Management Committee in the context of results and for the purposes 

of approving the annual operating plan is on a consolidatcd basis for various rroducts of the Comp.my. /\ s 

the Management Committee monitors thc business activity as a single business segment vi z . Adhesives. 

Construction Chemicals and Sealants. and the sales substantially being in thc domestic market. the financial 
statcment are reflective of the inrormation required by Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments". 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO TIit FINANCIAL STATF:I\IENTS AS AT 31ST MARCIi, 2021 

Nore J.i: Financial Instruments: Categories or Finan rial lnstrumcnl and Fair Value llierarchy 

A. Caregories of Financial Instrument 

The foll(ming table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

As at 31 l\larch, 2021 

Fi oa ncial Assets 

Security deposit 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 

Financial Liabilities 

Long Term Borrowings 
Short Term 13orrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other Current Financial Liabilities 

As al 31 l\lareh, 2020 

Financial Assets 

Security tkposit 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash [ qui,alcnt 

Financial Liabilities 
Long Term Borrowings 
Short Term Borrowings 
Trade Payables 

Other Current Financial Liabilities 

Fair Value Fair Value through 
through Profit and Other Comprehensive 

Loss Income 

Fair Value Fair Value through 

through Profit and Other Cornprchensin 

Loss 

Amount in INR 

Amortised Cost 

l0 .23,040 

21 ,90,82.212 
54,089 

17.18.75,000 

7.01,43,040 

23.82.24. 706 
7,82.41.315 

Amortised Cost 

9.48.040 

16.85.06,522 

1.35.68. I 68 

23,43.75.000 

18.01,66,770 

2.81.09.037 



B. Fair Value llierarchy 

The management assessed the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities carried at 'amortised cost' approximate their fair value largely due to the 
short-term maturities of these instruments. 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities. 

As at 31 March, 2021 

Assets carried at amortised cost 

Security deposit 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 

Liabilities carried at amortised cost 
Long Term llorrowings 
Short Term Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other Current financial Liabilities 

As at 31 l\1areh, 2020 

Assets carried at amortised cost 

Security deposit 
Trade Receivables 
Cash amJ Cash Equivalent 

Liabilities carried at amortised cost 

Long Tenn Borrowings 
Short Term Rorrowings 
Trade Payables 
< lther ( ·urrent Financial Liabilities 

Fair value measurement using 

Quoted prices in Significant obsen-able Significant 
active markets 

(Le\'Cl I) 

inputs nnobsen·able inputs 

(Level 2) 

Fair value measurement using 

(Level 3) 

10,23,040 
21,90,82,212 

54,089 

17,18,75,000 

7,01,43.040 
23,82,24,706 

7,82,41,315 

Quoted prices in Significant obsen·able Sii:nifieant 
actin markets inputs 

(Lrnl I) (Lenl 2) 

unobsen·able inputs 

9,48,040 

16,85,06.522 

1,35,68.168 

23,43,75,000 

18,01,66,770 

2,81,09,037 



~EROFJX PRlVATE Ll'.\IITED 
~OTES TO THE FI:-.'A1'CJAL STATEME;,iTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

;,,'ote JS: Financial Risk Management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise shon term loans and borro\\ings, trade pa~ables and other payables The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company·, operations 

and to provide guarantees to suppol1 its operations. The Company's principal financial assets mclude loans to emplo~·ees. trade and other recel\'ables. and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its 

operations. 

The Company is exposed to market risk , credit nsk and liquidity risk. The Companv's financial risk activities are go,emed by appropriate policies and procedures and financial risks arc identified, measured 
and manal!ed in accordance with the Comoanv·s oolicies and risk obiecti,es. The Comoanv's financial risk management nolicies are set as oer the guidelines 

i) l\larkct Risk 

Market risk ,s the risk that the fair value of future cash nows of a financial instrument will flu ctuate because of changes m market prices Market price comprises three IYpes of risks : mterest rate risk, currenc\' 

risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity price nsk . The objccti\'e of market risk management ,s to manage and control market risk exposures withm acceptable parameters. while 

optimizing the return. In respect ofmoneta~ assets and liabilities denominated m foreign currencies, the Company·s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level 

ii) Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk ,s the risk that the fair ,aluc or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company·s exposure to the foreign currencv risk ans mg 

mainly due to its operating acti, ities and thus the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to trade pa, ables. 

The most significant foreign currencies the Company 1s e,posed to is the USO and EURO. 

Foreign currency exposure 

Financial Assets 
Trade Receivable 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade Payable 

Total Financial Liabilities 

!',;ct exposure to Foreign 
Currenc~· Risk (Liabilities) ...... . 

Year End 
31-03.2021 

31-03-2020 

31-03-202 I 
31-03-2020 

Year End 
31-03-2021 

3 I '03-2020 

3{-0J-2021 
31-03-2020 

JI-03-2021 

Jl-0J-2020 

Euro 

-
-
-
-

Euro 

-
1,40,638 

-
1,40,638 

(1,40,638) 

USD 
-
-
-

l/SD 
3 I ,07,8'l5 

4,65,292 
31 ,07,895 

4,65,292 

(Jl,07,895) 

(4,65,292) 

Amount in I~R 

Total 

-
-

-

Total 
Jl,07,1195 

6,05,930 

J 1,07.895 
6,05,930 

(31,07,895) 

(6,05,930) 



Foreign currenc)· sensith·ity 

The following tables demonstrate the sensiti\'ltv to a reasonably possible change in USD and EURO exchange rate . " i th all other ,ariables held constant. The impact on the Company ' s profit-(loss) before tax is 

due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. 

Description 

USO 

EURO 

Incrcasc/(dccrcasc) to Profit or Loss 

iii) Credit Risk 

Year £nde<l 
J 1 March, 2021 

Increase by 5q. Decrease by 5°·o 

( 1,55,395 J 1,55,395 

(1,55,395) 1,55,395 

Amuunl in 1'-R 
For the Period 17 July, 2019 lo 31 

.\I arch, 2020 

Increase by 5%1 Decrease by 5a,.o 

(]3,265) 

f7,032 J 

(30,297) 

23,265 

7.032 

J0,297 

Credit Risk is the risk of rinancia l loss to the Company i f a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. and arises principally from the Compam ·, receivable s 

from customers and loans The carf'.- ing amounts of fin ancial assds represent the maximum credit risk exposure. 



Trade Receh·ables 

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each cus10mcr The Risk Management Comminec has established a credit policy under which each new customer 
is analysed ind11 idually for creditwonhincss before the Company's standard payment and deli,ery terms and conditions are ofTered . The Company"s review includes financial statements, credit agency 
information, industry 1nfurmat10n and in some cases bank references Sales liml(s arc cs1abl1 shed for each customer and reviewed constantly. Any sales exceedrng those l1m1ts require approval from the 

management 

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits 

Credit risks from balances \\Ith banks and financial institutions 1s managed by the Companv's Treasur, Dcranment in accordance mth the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with 

approved counterpartics and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to m1nin11sc the concentration of risk s and therefore mitigate tinanc,al loss through counterparty·s rotenual 

failure to make payments 

iv) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk the risk that the Companv mil encounter diniculty in meeting the obligations assocwted with 1ts financial liabilit1es that arc set1led by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's 

approach to managing liquiditv is to ensure, as far as po, sibk, that it will have sufficient liquiditv to meet ns liabilities when the) arc due. under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or ris,rng damage to th~ Company's reputat ion. 

The table below summarises the matunt:Y profile of the Company's financial liabilit1es· 

Amount in INR 

Year Ended On Demand l ip to 3 months to 6 months I year to 3 years and Total 
A• at 31 :\larch, 2021 3 months 6 months to 1 vear 3 wars above 

Borrowings 31-03-2020 7.01.43 ,040 12.50,00,000 4,68.75,000 24 .20, 18,0-10 

31-03-2019 12,50,00,000 10,93.75,000 23,43,75.000 

Trade Payables 31-03-2020 - 23,82,24 ,706 - 23.82,24,706 

31-03-2019 18.01.66,770 18,01.66, 770 

Other Frnancial I.1abtlities 31-03-2020 1,41,n,223 15,69,092 1.56.25,000 4,68,75,000 7,82.41,316 

31-03-2019 1,05,30.612 19.53,425 1.56.25,000 - 2,81.09,036 

Total 31-03-2020 8,-13, 15.263 23,97 ,93, 798 1,56,25,000 -1,68, 75,000 12-~0,00,000 -1,68, 75,000 55,84.8-1,062 

31-03-2019 LOS,30,612 18,21,20,195 1,56,25,000 12,50,00,000 I 0,93,75,000 44,26,50,806 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO Tilt: FINAN('IAI. STATF.J\IF.l'l'TS AS AT JIST MARCH, 2021 

Nott- 3b~ Disclosurr under tht- Micro. Small and Medium En1C'rprises. Dt>,·elopmrnr Art, 2006 anr pro,·idrd as undtr for the ptriod 2020-21, to the 
exttnt the Company has rtrt-in•d intinrntion from the ... Suppliers" regarding thtir status under thr Act. 

Pnrticul.trs \'car En<led 
31 March, 2021 

a TI1e principal amount and the mterest due !hereon rc111a111111g unpaid to any supplier as at the end of ench 2.69, 19.1 17 

accounting pcrio<l : 

- Principal amount due 10 m iL:ro an<l small enterprises 

- Interest due on al>o\·c 

b. The amount of intcrcsl pai<l by 1he huyl.'1 in tl.!nns of Sccuon 16 o f the MSM[D Act. 2006. along wtth 1hc 

amounls of the payment made to the supplier ll\.~·c,,)lld lhc appo111tc(I day <luring ~ach accounting ,~rio<l 

c. llu: amount of mtc:rest <lue an<l payable for the period of dclny in making p.iyn1cm (which ha\'C been paid I.HII 

beyond the apJh•mlcd day during lhc pcriud) but ,.,.,,tJtout a<lJ111g lhc 1111ercs1 spcci fled under ~,,1SMElJ ,\c1. 20UCJ 

d . l11e amount or 11111:rcsl accrued and remaining unpaid nt the end or cad1 aci..:ounting. pi:rio<l. 

c. The a.11wwu of funh1.:r interest remaining. due and payable C\'C ll in the sm.:cecding periods, until such dale ~hen 

the interest dues as above arc actually paid to the small entcrprist! for the- purpose of disallovw·a11cc ::ts a deductible 
cxpcn<li1urc undc1 Section 2] of /\·1St\1ED Act, 2006 . 

Amount in INR 

Forth< Puiod 17 
July, 2019 to JI 

730.70.527 



l"iEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEI\IENTS AS AT 31ST MARCIi, 2021 

Amount in INR 
Note 37: Capital Management 

for the purpose of the Company's capital managerm:nt, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the 
shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the 

requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital strncture, the Company may adjust the dividend 

payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The current capital structurc of the Company is equity 
based with financing_ through long_ tenn borrowings. 

Long Tern1 Borrowings including Current Maturities 

Short Term 13orrowing_s 

Less: Cash and Cash Equivaknts 

Net deht 

Equity 

Tntal capital 

Capital and net debt 
Gearing ratio 

As at 
31 l\farch, 2021 

23,43,75,000 

7,01,43 ,040 

54,089 

J0,-U,63,951 

15,42,20,556 

15,42,20-556 

45,86,84,507 

66% 

As at 
31 l\larch, 2020 

25,00,00,000 

1_35 ,68,168 

23,64,31,832 

I 9, 13,66,052 

19, 13,66,052 

42,77,97,884 

55% 

Th,-rc havl' been no bn:aches in 1hc financiul covenants of any interest-hearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO TIIE l'l:',IANCIAL STATEI\IENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Note 38: Business Combination 

Acquisition or Business of Polygel Industries Pri\'ale Limited 
The Company entered mto a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) with Polygcl Industries Private Limited, a pm~ate company on 21 August, 2019 where the business verticals of 

manufacturing and distnhulion of Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants were ac4u1red hy the company Ill a slump sale This transactton mvolved transfer of movable 

assets, undertaking records, right lo occupy and use immovable properties, transfer of employees, etc. as defined 111 the BT/\. The business acquisition was conducted for cash 

consideration of INR 45,00,00,000. There would be no additional consideration and the said consideration 1s final as the requisite working capital statement has been prepared. 

The acquisition fulfils the Company's objective to continue busmess of Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants 

The Company has acquired assets of Rs. 57,43,9cl,478 and assumed liabilities of Rs. 12,43,94,478 at the date oracquisit10n on the basis ofpurcbase price allocation (at fair 

value). 

The fair value of the trade receivables amounted to Rs. 12,0 I ,lJ8,684 at the time of acquisition and the same is tu be collected 

However, none of the trade receivables is credit impaired and it is expected that the full contractual amounts will be collected. 

The Company has not incurred any transaction cost. 

Note 39: Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19: 

"The COVIi) -19 pandemic is rapidly spreading throughout the world. The operations of the Company were impacted, due to shutdown of all plants and offices following 

natinnwide locldmH1 by the Government of India The Company has resumed operations in a phased manner as per directives from the Government of India. The Company has 

cvaluakd impact of this pandemic on its business operations and linancial position and based on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions, there is no 

s1g111ficant impact on its financial statements as at 31 March, 2021. I lowever, the impact assessment of COYID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with 

its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements The Company will continue to 

monitor any material changes to future economic condllions." 

Note 40: Comparati..e Figures for Previous Period 

Previous year comparative figures are prepared from the date of incorporation i e. 17 Julv, Wl9 to 31 March, 2020 whereas current year figures are from I April, 2020 to 31 

March, 2021 

Previous year figures arc regrouped and reca:<;t \\·hcrevcr neccs~ary to make them comparable with the ligurcs of the currcn1 year. 
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